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Application:	Brooklyn	Charter	School
Joanne	Hunt	-	jhunt@brooklyncharter.org
2020-2021	Annual	Report

Entry	1	School	Info	and	Cover	Page
Completed	 	Jul	21	2021

Instructions

Required	of	ALL	Charter	Schools

Each	 Annual	 Report	 begins	 with	 a	 completed	 School	 Information	 and	 Cover	 Page.	 The	 information	 is
collected	in	a	survey	format	within	Annual	Report	portal.	When	entering	information	in	the	portal,	some
of	 the	 following	 items	may	not	 appear,	depending	on	your	authorizer	and/or	 your	 responses	 to	 related
items.

Entry	1	School	Information	and	Cover	Page

(New	schools	that	were	not	open	for	instruction	for	the	2020-2021	school	year	are	not	required

to	complete	or	submit	an	annual	report	this	year).	

Please	be	advised	that	you	will	need	to	complete	this	cover	page	(including	signatures)	before	all	of	the
other	tasks	assigned	to	you	by	your	school's	authorizer	are	visible	on	your	task	page.	While	completing	this
cover	page	task,	please	ensure	that	you	select	the	correct	authorizer	(as	of	June	30,	2021)	or	you	may
not	be	assigned	the	correct	tasks.

BASIC	INFORMATION

a.	SCHOOL	NAME

(Select	name	from	the	drop	down	menu)

BROOKLYN	CHARTER	SCHOOL	(THE)	331400860809
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a1.	Popular	School	Name

BCS

b.	CHARTER	AUTHORIZER	(As	of	June	30th,	2021)

Please	select	the	correct	authorizer	as	of	June	30,	2021	or	you	may	not	be	assigned	the	correct	tasks.

NEW	YORK	CITY	CHANCELLOR	OF	EDUCATION

c.	DISTRICT	/	CSD	OF	LOCATION

CSD	#14	-	BROOKLYN

d.	DATE	OF	INITIAL	CHARTER

1/2000

e.	DATE	FIRST	OPENED	FOR	INSTRUCTION

9/2000
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f.	APPROVED	SCHOOL	MISSION		(Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized	schools	only)

MISSION	STATEMENT

The	Brooklyn	Charter	School	is	committed	to	providing	a	nurturing	and	supportive	community	where
students	feel	secure,	recognize	their	own	potential,	respect	others	regardless	of	race,	religion	or	culture,
and	are	instilled	with	the	desire	to	learn	and	achieve.	It	is	our	aim	to	provide	a	rigorous	academic
program	supported	by	Arts	and	Technology	that	cultivates	the	whole	child.	Through	achievement	and
creativity,	and	in	partnership	with	our	families,	students	will	develop	the	necessary	confidence,
intellectual	capacity	and	leadership	skills	to	prepare	them	for	an	evolving	global	society.
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g.	KEY	DESIGN	ELEMENTS	(Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized	schools	only)

KEY	 DESIGN	 ELEMENTS	 (Briefly	 describe	 each	 Key	 Design	 Elements	 (KDE)	 as	 presented	 in	 the	 schools
approved	 charter.	 	 KDEs	 are	 those	 general	 aspects	 of	 the	 school	 that	 are	 innovative	 or	 unique	 to	 the
school’s	mission	and	goals,	are	core	to	the	school’s	overall	design,	and	are	critical	to	its	success.

KDE	1 A	fully	inclusive	school	accommodating	Students
with	Disabilities	and	English	Language	Learners.

KDE	2 A	school	which	offers	small	classroom	sizes	that
average	no	more	than	20	students	per	classroom
with	two	instructors	per	class.

KDE	3 A	rigorous	experiential	curriculum	in	Humanities,
Mathematics	and	Science.

KDE	4 A	rich	performing	arts	and	technology	program	for
all	students.

KDE	5 (No	response)

KDE	6 (No	response)

KDE	7 (No	response)

KDE	8 (No	response)

KDE	9 (No	response)

KDE	10 (No	response)

Need	additional	space	for	variables

No

h.	SCHOOL	WEB	ADDRESS	(URL)

https://www.brooklyncharter.org/
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i.	TOTAL	MAX	APPROVED	ENROLLMENT	FOR	THE	2020-2021	SCHOOL	YEAR	(exclude	Pre-K

program	enrollment)

240

j.	TOTAL	STUDENT	ENROLLMENT	ON	JUNE	30,	2021	(exclude	Pre-K	program	enrollment)

210

k.	GRADES	SERVED	IN	SCHOOL	YEAR	2020-2021	(exclude	Pre-K	program	students)

Check	all	that	apply

Grades	Served K,	1,	2,	3,	4,	5

l1.	DOES	THE	SCHOOL	CONTRACT	WITH	A	CHARTER	OR	EDUCATIONAL	MANAGEMENT

ORGANIZATION?

	

No

FACILITIES	INFORMATION

m.	FACILITIES

Will	the	school	maintain	or	operate	multiple	sites	in	2021-2022?

No,	just	one	site.
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School	Site	1	(Primary)

m1.	SCHOOL	SITES

Please	provide	information	on	Site	1	for	the	upcoming	school	year.

Physical
Address

Phone	Number District/CSD Grades	to	be
Served	at	Site
for	coming
year	(K-5,	6-9,
etc.)

Receives
Rental
Assistance	for
Which	Grades
(If	yes,	enter
the	appropriate
grades.	If	no,
enter	No).

Site	1

545	Willoughby
Avenue,
Brooklyn,	New
York	11206

7183022085 NYC	CSD	14 K-5 No
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m1a.	Please	provide	the	contact	information	for	Site	1.

Name Work	Phone Alternate	Phone Email	Address

School	Leader Joanne	Hunt 718-302-2085 jhunt@brooklyncha
rter.org

Operational	Leader Pamptata	Sanders 718-302-2085 psanders@brookly
ncharter.org

Compliance
Contact Robert	Morales 718-302-2085 rmorales@brookly

ncharter.org

Complaint	Contact Joanne	Hunt 718-302-2085 jhunt@brooklyncha
rter.org

DASA	Coordinator Shannon	Cullen 718-302-2085 scullen@brooklync
harter.org

Phone	Contact	for
After	Hours
Emergencies

Joanne	Hunt 718-302-2085 jhunt@brooklyncha
rter.org

m1b.	Is	site	1	in	public	(co-located)	space	or	in	private	space?

Co-located	Space

m1c.	Please	list	the	terms	of	your	current	co-location.

Date	school
will	leave
current	co-
location

Is	school
working	with
NYCDOE	to
expand	into
current
space?

If	so,	list
year
expansion
will	occur.

Is	school
working	with
NYCDOE	to
move	to
separate
space?

If	so,	list	the
proposed
space	and
year	planned
for	move

School	at
Full	Capacity
at	Site

Site	1 Not
applicable No No Yes
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IF	LOCATED	IN	PRIVATE	SPACE	IN	NYC	OR	IN	DISTRICTS	OUTSIDE	NYC

m1d.	Upload	a	current	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)	and	the	annual	Fire	 Inspection	Report

for	school	site	1	if	located	in	private	space	in	NYC	or	located	outside	of	NYC	.

Certificate	 of	 Occupancy	 and	 Fire	 Inspection.	 	 Provide	 a	 copy	 of	 a	 current	 and	 non-expired

certificate	of	occupancy	(if	outside	NYC	or	in	private	space	in	NYC).	For	schools	that	are	not	in

district	 space	 (NYC	 co-locations),	 provide	 a	 copy	 of	 a	 current	 and	 non-expired	 certificate	 of

occupancy,	and	a	copy	of	the	current	annual	fire	inspection	results,	which	should	be	dated	on

or	after	July	1,	2021.

Site	1	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)

Site	1	Fire	Inspection	Report

CHARTER	REVISIONS	DURING	THE	2020-2021	SCHOOL	YEAR

n1.	Were	there	any	revisions	to	the	school’s	charter	during	the	2020-2021	school	year?	(Please

include	approved	or	pending	material	and	non-material	charter	revisions).

No

o.	Has	your	school's	Board	of	Trustee's	approved	a	budget	for	the	2020-2021	FY?

(No	response)

ATTESTATIONS
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p.	Individual	Primarily	Responsible	for	Submitting	the	Annual	Report.

Name Joanne	Hunt

Position Principal

Phone/Extension 718-302-2085-3251

Email jhunt@brooklyncharter.org

p.	 Our	 signatures	 (Executive	 Director/School	 Leader/Head	 of	 School	 and	 Board	 President)

below	 attest	 that	 our	 school	 has	 reviewed,	 understands	 and	will	 comply	with	 the	 employee

clearance	and	 fingerprint	 requirements	as	outlined	 in	Entry	10	and	 found	 in	 the	NYSED	 CSO

Fingerprint	Clearance	Oct	2019	Memo.	Click	YES	to	agree.

Responses	Selected:

Yes

q.	 Our	 signatures	 (Executive	 Director/School	 Leader/Head	 of	 School	 and	 Board	 President)

below	attest	that	all	of	the	information	contained	herein	is	truthful	and	accurate	and	that	this

charter	school	 is	 in	compliance	with	all	aspects	of	 its	charter,	and	with	all	pertinent	Federal,

State,	and	local	laws,	regulations,	and	rules.	We	understand	that	if	any	information	in	any	part

of	this	report	is	found	to	have	been	deliberately	misrepresented,	that	will	constitute	grounds

for	the	revocation	of	our	charter.		Click	YES	to	agree	and	then	use	the	mouse	on	your	PC	or	the

stylus	on	your	mobile	device	to	sign	your	name).

Responses	Selected:

Yes
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Signature,	Head	of	Charter	School

Signature,	President	of	the	Board	of	Trustees

Date

Jul	21	2021

Thank	you.

Entry	3	Progress	Toward	Goals



11	/	42

Completed	 	Oct	29	2021

Instructions	
Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE-authorized	charter	schools

For	the	2020-2021	school	year,	any	academic	or
organization	goals	that	cannot	be	evaluated	due	to	school
closure	resulting	in	a	lack	of	data	and	changes	in	testing,
surveying,	and	other	usual	practices	should	be	reported	as
“N/A”.	Deadline	is	November	1,	2021.
PLEASE	NOTE:	This	is	a	required	task,	and	it	is
marked	optional	for	administrative	purposes	only.
Entry	3	Progress	Toward	Goals
PROGRESS	TOWARD	CHARTER	GOALS

Board	of	Regents-authorized	and	NYCDOE-authorized	charter	schools	only.	

Complete	the	tables	provided.	List	each	goal	and	measure	as	contained	in	the	school’s	currently	approved
charter,	and	 indicate	whether	 the	school	has	met	or	not	met	 the	goal.	Please	provide	 information	 for	all
	goals	no	later	than	November	2,	2021.

1.	ACADEMIC	STUDENT	PERFORMANCE	GOALS

For	 the	2020-2021	 school	 year,	 any	academic	goals
that	 cannot	 be	 evaluated	 due	 to	 school	 closure
resulting	 in	 a	 lack	 of	 data	 and	 changes	 in	 testing,
surveying,	 and	 other	 usual	 practices	 should	 be
reported	as	“N/A”.

2020-2021	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Academic	Goals

Academic	Student Measure	Used	to Goal	-	Met,	Not If	not	met,
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Performance	Goal Evaluate	Progress
Toward	Attainment
of	Goal

Met	or	Unable	to
Assess

describe	efforts
the	school	will	take
to	meet	goal.	If
unable	to	assess
goal,	type	N/A	for
Not	Applicable

Academic	Goal	1

NYS	ELA	exam
proficiency	rates
meet	or	exceed
comparable
community	school
district	(CSD)
rates.

NYS	ELA	Exam	for
grades	3-5 Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.

Academic	Goal	2

NYS	ELA	exam
proficiency	rates
meet	or	exceed
comparable
Citywide
rates.

NYS	ELA	Exam	for
grades	3-5 Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.

Academic	Goal	3

NYS	Math	exam
proficiency	rates
meet	or	exceed
comparable
Citywide
rates.

NYS	Math	exam	for
grades	3-5 Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.

Academic	Goal	4

NYS	Math	exam
proficiency	rates
meet	or	exceed
comparable
Citywide
rates.

NYS	Math	exam	for
grades	3-5 Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.

Academic	Goal	5
NYS	ELA	exam
proficiency	rates
increase.

NYS	ELA	Exam	for
grades	3-5 Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.

Academic	Goal	6
NYS	Math	exam
proficiency	rates
increase.

NYS	Math	exam	for
grades	3-5 Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.
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Academic	Goal	7

NYS	ELA	exam
proficiency	rates
for
English	Language
Learners	will
demonstrate
positive
academic	growth
for
the	applicable
population.

NYS	ELA	Exam	for
grades	3-5 Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.

Academic	Goal	8

NYS	ELA	exam
proficiency	rates
for
Students	with
Disabilities	(SWD)
will
demonstrate
positive
academic	growth
for
the	applicable
population.

NYS	ELA	Exam	for
grades	3-5 Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.

Academic	Goal	9

NYS	ELA	exam
proficiency	rates
for
students	eligible
for
free	and	reduced
price	lunch	(FRLP)
will	demonstrate
positive	academic
growth	for	the
applicable
population.

NYS	ELA	Exam	for
grades	3-5. Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.

Academic	Goal	10

NYS	Math	exam
proficiency	rates
for
English	Language
Learners	will
demonstrate
positive

NYS	Math	exam	for
grades	3-5 Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.
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academic	growth
for
the	applicable
population.

2.	Do	have	more	academic	goals	to	add?

Yes

2020-2021	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Academic	Goals

Academic	Student
Performance	Goal

Measure	Used	to
Evaluate	Progress
Toward	Attainment
of	Goal

Goal	-	Met,	Not
Met	or	Unable	to
Assess

2019-2020
progress	toward
attainment	of	goal
Met/Not
Met/Unable	to
Assess	During	Due
to	Closure

Academic	Goal	11

NYS	Math	exam
proficiency	rates
for
Students	with
Disabilities	(SWD)
will
demonstrate
positive
academic	growth
for
the	applicable
population.

NYS	Math	exam	for
grades	3-5 Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.

Academic	Goal	12

NYS	Math	exam
proficiency	rates
for
students	eligible
for
free	and	reduced
price	lunch	(FRLP)
will	demonstrate

NYS	Math	exam	for
grades	3-5 Unable	to	Assess Not	applicable.
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positive	academic
growth	for	the
applicable
population.

Academic	Goal	13

Academic	Goal	14

Academic	Goal	15

Academic	Goal	16

Academic	Goal	17

Academic	Goal	18

Academic	Goal	19

Academic	Goal	20

3.	Do	have	more	academic	goals	to	add?

No

4.	ORGANIZATION	GOALS

For	 the	 2020-2021	 school	 year,	 any	 organization
goals	that	cannot	be	evaluated	due	to	school	closure
resulting	 in	 a	 lack	 of	 data	 and	 changes	 in	 testing,
surveying,	 and	 other	 usual	 practices	 should	 be
reported	as	“N/A”.

2020-2021	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Organization	Goals

Organizational
Goal

Measure	Used	to
Evaluate	Progress

Goal	-	Met,	Not
Met,	or	Unable	to
Assess

If	not	met,
describe	efforts
the	school	will	take
to	meet	goal.	If
unable	to	assess
goal,	type	N/A	for
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Not	Applicable

Org	Goal	1

The	school	self
reported	average
daily	student
attendance	rate
shall
meet	or	exceed
the
average	daily
attendance	for
Community	School
District	14.

ATS	and	CSD	14
attendance	data. Unable	to	Assess

CSD	14	attendance
data	has	not	been
publicly	release	as
of	11/1/21.

Org	Goal	2

The	school
retention
rate	will	exceed
the
rate	of	CSD	14.

CSD	retention	rate
data. Unable	to	Assess

CSD	14	retention
rate	data	has	not
been	released	as
of	11/1/21.

Org	Goal	3

The	school	will
meet
or	exceed	any
applicable	student
enrollment	targets,
as	prescribed	by
the
Board	of	Regents,
for
English	Language
Learners.

NYC	DOE	Annual
Comprehensive
Review	Report.

Unable	to	Assess

2020-21	NYC	GEO
DISTRICT	14
comparative
enrollment	data
has	not	been
released	as	of
11/1/21.

Org	Goal	4

The	school	will
meet
or	exceed	any
applicable	student
enrollment	targets,
as	prescribed	by
the
Board	of	Regents,
for
students	with
disabilities.

NYC	DOE	Annual
Comprehensive
Review	Report.

Unable	to	Assess

2020-21	NYC	GEO
DISTRICT	14
comparative
enrollment	data
has	not	been
released	as	of
11/1/21.

The	school	will
meet
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Org	Goal	5

or	exceed	any
applicable	student
enrollment	targets,
as	prescribed	by
the
Board	of	Regents,
for
students	eligible
for
the	Free	or
Reduced
Price	Lunch
Program.

NYC	DOE	Annual
Comprehensive
Review	Report.

Unable	to	Assess

2020-21	NYC	GEO
DISTRICT	14
comparative
enrollment	data
has	not	been
released	as	of
11/1/21.

Org	Goal	6

The	school	will
meet	or	exceed
any	applicable
student	retention
targets,	as
prescribed	by	the
Board	of	Regents,
for	English
Language
Learners.

NYC	DOE	Annual
Comprehensive
Review	Report.

Unable	to	Assess

BCS'	ELL
population	made
up	6%	of	the
school's	overall
enrollment.	CSD
14	comparative
data	is	not
available	as	of
11/1/21.

Org	Goal	7

The	school	will
meet	or	exceed
any	applicable
student	retention
targets,	as
prescribed	by	the
Board	of	Regents,
for	Students	with
Disabilities.

NYC	DOE	Annual
Comprehensive
Report.

Unable	to	Assess

BCS'	SWDs
population	made
up	17%	of	the
school's	overall
enrollment.	CSD
14	comparative
data	is	not
available	as	of
11/1/21.

Org	Goal	8

The	school	will
meet	or	exceed
any	applicable
student	retention
targets,	as
prescribed	by	the
Board	of	Regents,
for	the	Free	or
Reduced	Price
Lunch	Program.

NYC	DOE	Annual
Comprehensive
Report.

Unable	to	Assess

BCS'	FRLPs
population	made
up	81%	of	the
school's	overall
enrollment.	CSD
14	comparative
data	is	not
available	as	of
11/1/21.



18	/	42

Org	Goal	9

Parents	will
express
satisfaction	with
the	school's
program	based	on
the	NYC	DOE
School	Survey.	The
school	will	only
have	met	the	goal
if	at	least	50%	of
parents	participate
in	the	survey.

NYC	DOE	School
Survey. Unable	to	Assess

2020-21	NYC	DOE
School	Survey	has
not	been	publicly
released	as	of
11/1/21.

Org	Goal	10

Staff	will	express
satisfaction	with
the	school's
program	based	on
the	NYC	DOE
School	Survey.	The
school	will	only
have	met	the	goal
if	at	least	50%	of
teachers
participate	in	the
survey.

NYC	DOE	School
Survey. Unable	to	Assess

2020-21	NYC	DOE
School	Survey	has
not	been	publicly
released	as	of
11/1/21.

Org	Goal	11

Org	Goal	12

Org	Goal	13

Org	Goal	14

Org	Goal	15

Org	Goal	16

Org	Goal	17

Org	Goal	18

Org	Goal	19

Org	Goal	20
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5.	Do	have	more	organizational	goals	to	add?

No

6.	FINANCIAL	GOALS

2020-2021	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Financial	Goals

Financial	Goals Measure	Used	to
Evaluate	Progress

Goal	-	Met,	Not
Met,	or	Partially
Met

If	not	met,
describe	efforts
the	school	will	take
to	meet	goal.

Financial	Goal	1

Each	year	the
school	will
maintain	a	stable
cash	flow	as
evidenced	of
having	60	days	of
unrestricted	cash
on	hand	reported
in	the	yearly
independent	fiscal
audit.

2020-21
Independent	Fiscal
Audit.

Met

The	school	has
more	than	60	days
of	unrestricted
cash	on	hand.

Financial	Goal	2

Each	year,	the
school	will	operate
on	a	balanced
budget.

2020-21
Independent	Fiscal
Audit.

Met

The	school
operated	on	a
balanced	budget
for	the	2020-21
school	year.

Financial	Goal	3

Each	year,	the
school	will	meet	or
exceed	85%	of
their	authorized
enrollment	on
10/31	as	recorded
in	ATS.

Automate	the
School	(ATS)	data. Met

The	school	met	its
authorized
enrollment	as	of
10/31/20.

Financial	Goal	4

Financial	Goal	5
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7.	Do	have	more	financial	goals	to	add?

No

Thank	you.

Entry	4	-	Audited	Financial	Statements
Completed	 	Oct	29	2021

Required	of	ALL	Charter	Schools

ALL	SUNY-authorized	charter	schools	must	upload	the	financial	statements	in	.pdf	format	into	the
SUNY	Epicenter	system	no	later	than	November	1,	2021.	SUNY	CSI	will	forward	to	NYSED	CSO.

ALL	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized	charter	schools	must	upload	final,	audited
financial	statements	to	the	Annual	Report	Portal	no	later	than	November	1,	2021.	Upload	the
independent	auditor’s	report,	any	advisory	and/or	management	letter,	and	the	internal	controls	report	as
one	submission,	combined	into	a	.PDF	file,	ensuring	that	security	features	such	as	password	protection
are	turned	off.

PLEASE	NOTE:	This	is	a	required	task,	and	it	is	marked	optional	for	administrative	purposes
only.

BCS	Audited	Finacials	FY21

Filename:	BCS Audited Finacials FY21.pdf	Size:	709.6	kB

Entry	4b	–	Audited	Financial	Report	Template	(BOR/NYC/BOE)
Completed	 	Oct	29	2021

Instructions	-	Regents-Authorized	Charter	Schools	ONLY

Regents-authorized	schools	must	download	and	complete	the	Excel	spreadsheet	entitled	“Audited
Financial	Report	Template”	from	the	online	portal	or	the	website	at	2020-2021	Charter	School	Annual
Report	webpage.		Upload	the	completed	file	in	Excel	format.	Due	November	1,	2021.

Education	Corporations	with	more	than	one	school	should	complete	the	Excel	spreadsheet	for
the	Education	Corporation	as	a	whole,	not	for	the	individual	schools.		Please	submit	the	same
Excel	spreadsheet	for	each	of	the	schools.

PLEASE	NOTE:	This	is	a	required	task,	and	it	is	marked	optional	for	administrative	purposes
only.

BCS	Audited	Annual	Financial	Report	FY21_22

Filename:	BCS Audited Annual Financial Repor n4oDn74.XLSX	Size:	61.4	kB

Entry	4c	–	Additional	Financial	Documents
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Completed	 	Oct	29	2021

Instructions	-	Regents,	NYCDOE	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized	schools	must	upload	financial
documents	in	this	section	by	November	1,	2021.	The	items	listed	below	should	be	uploaded,	with	an
explanation	if	not	applicable	or	available.	For	example,	a	“federal	Single	Audit	was	not	required	because
the	school	did	not	expend	federal	funds	of	more	than	the	$750,000	Threshold.”

1.	 Advisory	and/or	Management	letter
2.	 Federal	Single	Audit
3.	 CSP	Agreed-Upon	Procedure	Report
4.	 Evidence	of	Required	Escrow	Account	for	each	school[1]
5.	 Corrective	Action	Plan	for	Audit	Findings	and	Management	Letter	Recommendations

[1]	Note:	For	BOR	schools	chartered	or	renewed	after	the	2017-2018	school	year,	the	escrow	account	per
school	is	$100,000.	

PLEASE	NOTE:	This	is	a	required	task,	and	it	is	marked	optional	for	administrative	purposes
only.

BCS	Mgmt	Letter	FY21

Filename:	BCS Mgmt Letter FY21.pdf	Size:	176.1	kB

BCS	Escrow	Account	Bank	Statement	9_2021

Filename:	BCS Escrow Account Bank Statement 9 2021.pdf	Size:	253.1	kB

BCS	Corrective	Action	Plan	FY21

Filename:	BCS Corrective Action Plan FY21.pdf	Size:	64.4	kB

Entry	4d	-	Financial	Services	Contact	Information
Completed	 	Jul	21	2021

Instructions:	Please	enter	the	contact	information	for	school	staff,	firms	or	other	entities	providing
financial	services	to	the	education	corporation	by	November	1,	2021.

Form	for	"Financial	Services	Contact	Information"
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Entry	6	–	Board	of	Trustees	Disclosure	of	Financial	Interest
Form
Completed	 	Jul	29	2021

Required	of	ALL	Charter	Schools	by	August	2

Each	member	of	the	charter	school’s	Board	of	Trustees	who	served	on	a	charter	school	education
corporation	governing	one	or	more	charter	schools	for	any	period	during	the	2020-2021	school	year	must
complete	a	signed:

Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Schools:	Disclosure	of	Financial	Interest	Form
SUNY-	Authorized	Charter	Schools:	SUNY	Trustee	Financial	Disclosure	Form

All	completed	forms	must	be	collected	and	uploaded	in	.PDF	format	for	each	individual	member.	If	a
trustee	is	not	able	or	available	to	complete	the	form	by	the	deadline,	the	education	corporation
is	responsible	for	doing	so	on	behalf	of	the	trustee.	(Forms	completed	from	past	years	will	not	be
accepted).

Trustees	serving	on	an	education	corporation	that	governs	more	than	one	school	are	not	required	to
complete	a	separate	disclosure	for	each	school	governed	by	the	education	corporation.	In	the	Disclosure
of	Financial	Interest	Form,	trustees	must	disclose	information	relevant	to	any	of	the	schools	served	by	the
governing	education	corporation.	Note:	Docusign	is	accepted.

BCS	Financial	Disclosure	Forms	2020_21

Filename:	BCS Financial Disclosure Forms 2020 21.pdf	Size:	929.9	kB

Entry	7	BOT	Membership	Table
Completed	 	Jul	27	2021

Instructions
Required	of	All	charter	schools
ALL	charter	 schools	or	 education	corporations	governing	multiple	 schools	must	 complete	 the	Board	of
Trustees	Membership	Table	within	the	online	portal.	Please	be	sure	to	include	and	identify	parents	who
are	members	of	the	Board	of	Trustees	and	indicate	whether	parents	are	voting	or	non-voting	members.

Entry	7	BOT	Table

1.	 SUNY-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	are	required	to	provide	information	for	VOTING	Trustees	only.		
2.	 REGENTS,	NYCDOE,	and	BUFFALO	BOE-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	are	required	to	provide

information	for	all	--VOTING	and	NON-VOTING--	trustees.
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1a.	Are	there	more	than	9	members	of	the	Board	of	Trustees?

No

2.	INFORMATION	ABOUT	MEMBERS	OF	THE	BOARD	OF	TRUSTEES

1.	 SUNY-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	provide	response	relative	to	VOTING	Trustees	only.		
2.	 REGENTS,	NYCDOE,	and	BUFFALO	BOE-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	provide	a	response	relative	to

all	trustees.	

a.	Total	Number	of	BOT	Members	on	June	30,	2021 5

b.Total	Number	of	Members	Added	During	2020-
2021

0

c.	Total	Number	of	Members	who	Departed	during
2020-2021

0

d.Total	Number	of	members,	as	set	in	Bylaws,
Resolution	or	Minutes

5

3.	Number	of	Board	meetings	held	during	2020-2021

11

4.	Number	of	Board	meetings	scheduled	for	2021-2022

12

Thank	you.

Entry	8	Board	Meeting	Minutes
Completed	 	Jul	27	2021
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Instructions	-	Required	of	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Schools	ONLY	

Schools	 must	 upload	 a	 complete	 set	 of	 monthly	 board	 meeting	 minutes	 (July	 2020-June	 2021),	 which
should	match	the	number	of	meetings	held	during	the	2020-2021	school	year,	as	indicated	in	the	above
table.	The	minutes	provided	must	be	 the	 final	 version	approved	by	 the	 school’s	Board	of	Trustees	and
may	be	uploaded	individually	or	as	one	single	combined	file.	Board	meeting	minutes	must	be	submitted
by	August	2,	2021.

BCS	Board	Meeting	Minutes	2020_21

Filename:	BCS Board Meeting Minutes 2020 21.pdf	Size:	2.1	MB

Entry	9	Enrollment	&	Retention
Completed	 	Jul	30	2021

Instructions	for	submitting	Enrollment	and	Retention	Efforts
ALL	charter	schools	must	complete	this	section.	Describe	the	good
faith	efforts	the	charter	school	has	made	in	2020-2021	toward	meeting
targets	to	attract	and	retain	the	enrollment	of	Students	with	Disabilities
(SWDs),	English	Language	Learners	(ELLs),	and	students	who	are
economically	disadvantaged.	In	addition,	describe	the	school’s	plans	for
meeting	or	making	progress	toward	meeting	its	enrollment	and	retention
targets	in	2021-2022.	

Entry	9	Enrollment	and	Retention	of	Special
Populations
Instructions	for	Reporting	Enrollment	and	Retention	Strategies
Describe	the	efforts	the	charter	school	has	made	in	2020-2021	toward
meeting	targets	to	attract	and	retain	enrollment	of	students	with	disabilities,
English	language	learners,	and	students	who	are	economically
disadvantaged.	In	addition,	describe	the	school’s	plans	for	meeting	or
making	progress	toward	meeting	its	enrollment	and	retention	targets	in
2021-2022.

	

Recruitment/Attraction	Efforts	Toward	Meeting	Targets

Describe	Recruitment	Efforts	in
2020-2021

Describe	Recruitment	Plans	in
2021-2022

In	an	effort	to	increase	equity
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and	access	to	various	special
student	populations	this	school
year	through	the	pandemic,	BCS
contracted	with	a	charter	school
marketing	firm	to	focus	on
increasing	student	recruitment	of
special	populations.	This	firm	is
providing	advertisements	in
several	languages	via	our	Face
Book,	Google	Ads	and	Instagram
platforms.	Brooklyn	Charter
School	requested	a	non-material
change	to	its	charter	in	2017-18
in	order	to	add	lottery
preferences	to	attract,	retain,
and	meet/exceed	enrollment	and
retention	targets	as	prescribed
by	the	Board	of	Regents	and	the
board	of	trustees	of	the	State
University	of	New	York.	The
Brooklyn	Charter	School	Board	of
Trustees	elected	to	give	annual
lottery	preferences	to	students
eligible	for	the	Free/Reduced
Lunch	Program	(FRLP’s).	For	the
2020-21	public	lottery,	students
deemed	economically
disadvantaged	received
preference	in	the	school’s	lottery.
The	lottery	preferences	apply	to
all	Brooklyn	Charter	School
kindergarten	applications	and
other	grades	(1-5)	with	available
seats.	BCS	also	continued	its
annual	outreach	to	Day	Care
Centers,	Nursery	&	Pre-K	Schools
and	Community	Centers
throughout	Bedford-Stuyvesant,
Bushwick,	East	New	York,	Crown
Heights	and	Clinton-Hill/Fort
Greene.	BCS	created	a	position	in
2018-19	titled,	“Recruitment
Coordinator”	which	is	still	an
integral	part	of	our	recruitment
program.	This	knowledgeable

For	the	2021-22	school	year,	BCS
will	continue	its	outreach	utilizing
the	marketing	firm	that	we
contracted	with	along	with	our
Recruitment	Coordinator	who	will
be	devoted	to	outreach	bi-
monthly	to	Day	Care	Centers,
Nursery	&	Pre-Schools	and
Community	Centers	throughout
Bedford-Stuyvesant,	Bushwick
and	East	New	York	areas
beginning	in	July.	This	staff
member	will	continue	to
distribute	promotional	packages
that	contain	information	about
the	school	and	our	programs,
open	houses	and	tours,	as	well
as,	hard	copies	of	the
application.	BCS	will	continue	to
foster	relationships	with	these
organizations	in	order	to	have	a
platform	to	give	presentations.
BCS	will	continue	to	attend
recruitment	fairs	throughout	the
school	year	(NYC	Charter	Center,
etc.).	BCS	will	continue	to	provide
its	promotional	materials	in
several	languages	in	order	to
reach	a	more	diverse	population
for	the	2021-22	school	year.
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bilingual	staff	member	continues
to	be	responsible	for	reaching
out	within	the	community	on	a
bi-monthly	basis	beginning	in	the
summer	of	each	school	year	to
distribute	promotional	packages
that	contain	information	about
the	school	and	its	programs,
open	houses	and	tours,	as	well
as,	hard	copies	of	the
application.	These	applications
are	also	made	accessible	on	the
school’s	website	for	easy	access.

In	an	effort	to	increase	equity
and	access	to	various	special
student	populations	this	school
year,	BCS	contracted	with	a
charter	school	marketing	firm	to
focus	on	increasing	student
recruitment	of	special
populations.	This	firm	is
providing	advertisements	in
several	languages	via	our	Face
Book,	Google	Ads	and	Instagram
platforms.	Additionally	in	an
effort	to	increase	the	number	of
ELL	students	at	Brooklyn	Charter
School,	The	BCS	Board	of
Trustees	voted	to	incorporate
another	non-material	change	at
the	April	2021	board	meeting	to
weight	seats	in	future	BCS
lotteries	for	all	incoming	ELL
applicants	in	grades	K-5	where
25%	of	all	kindergarten	seats	and
available	1-5	seats	will	be	slated
for	ELL	students.	In	an	effort	to
further	increase	equity	and
access	to	various	special	student
populations,	Brooklyn	Charter
School	requested	a	non-material
change	to	its	charter	in	order	to
add	lottery	preferences	to

For	the	2021-22	school	year,	BCS
will	continue	its	outreach	utilizing
the	marketing	firm	that	we
contracted	with	along	with	our
Recruitment	Coordinator	who	will
be	devoted	to	outreach	bi-
monthly	to	Day	Care	Centers,
Nursery	&	Pre-Schools	and
Community	Centers	throughout
Bedford-Stuyvesant,	Bushwick
and	East	New	York	areas
beginning	in	July.	This	staff
member	will	continue	to
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attract,	retain,	and	meet/exceed
enrollment	and	retention	targets
as	prescribed	by	the	Board	of
Regents	and	the	board	of
trustees	of	the	State	University
of	New	York.	The	Brooklyn
Charter	School	Board	of	Trustees
elected	to	give	annual	lottery
preferences	to	English	Language
Learners	(ELL’s).	For	the	2020-21
public	lottery,	students	deemed
English	Language	Learners
received	preference	in	the
school’s	lottery.	The	lottery
preferences	apply	to	all	Brooklyn
Charter	School	kindergarten
applications	and	other	grades	(1-
5)	with	available	seats.	BCS	also
made	an	effort	to	attract	English
language	learners	sending	its
Recruitment	Coordinator	to
advertise	within	the	community
by	visiting	day	care	programs	to
speak	with	parents	about	BCS
and	our	ELL	program	as	well	as
distribute	applications.
Applications	for	the	school	were
created	in	English	with	a
translation	in	Spanish,	to	attract
families	within	the	community
whose	primary	language	was	not
English.	These	applications	were
also	made	accessible	on	the
school's	website.

distribute	promotional	packages
that	contain	information	about
the	school	and	our	programs,
open	houses	and	tours,	as	well
as,	hard	copies	of	the
application.	BCS	will	continue	to
foster	relationships	with	these
organizations	in	order	to	have	a
platform	to	give	presentations.
BCS	will	continue	to	attend
recruitment	fairs	throughout	the
school	year	(NYC	Charter	Center,
etc.).	BCS	will	continue	to	provide
its	promotional	materials	in
several	languages	in	order	to
reach	a	more	diverse	population
for	the	2021-22	school	year.

In	an	effort	to	further	increase
equity	and	access	to	various
special	student	populations	this
school	year,	BCS	contracted	with
a	charter	school	marketing	firm
to	focus	on	increasing	student
recruitment	of	special
populations.	This	firm	is
providing	advertisements
referencing	the	preferences	in
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the	lottery	in	several	languages
via	our	Face	Book,	Google	Ads
and	Instagram	platforms.	In
2017-18,	Brooklyn	Charter
School	requested	a	non-material
change	to	its	charter	in	order	to
add	lottery	preferences	to
attract,	retain,	and	meet/exceed
enrollment	and	retention	targets
as	prescribed	by	the	Board	of
Regents	and	the	board	of
trustees	of	the	State	University
of	New	York.	The	Brooklyn
Charter	School	Board	of	Trustees
elected	to	give	annual	lottery
preferences	to	Students	with
Disabilities	(SWD’s).	For	the
2019-20	public	lottery,	students
applying	with	an	Individualized
Education	Plan	(IEP)	received
preference	in	the	school’s	lottery.
The	lottery	preferences	apply	to
all	Brooklyn	Charter	School
kindergarten	applications	and
other	grades	(1-5)	with	available
seats.	BCS	utilized	our
recruitment	coordinator	to	reach
out	to	the	community	on	a	bi-
monthly	basis	beginning	in
November	to	advertise	within	the
community	by	visiting	day	care
programs	to	speak	with	parents
about	BCS	and	our	Special
Education	program	as	well	as
distribute	applications.	BCS
placed	advertisements	in	local
newspapers	such	as	the	Daily
News	which	highlighted	our
special	education	program	to
ensure	further	outreach	to	this
student	population.	These
applications	were	also	made
accessible	on	the	school’s
website	for	easy	access.	BCS	also
did	a	website	overhaul	with

For	the	2021-22	school	year,	BCS
will	continue	its	outreach	utilizing
the	marketing	firm	that	we
contracted	with	along	with	our
Recruitment	Coordinator	who	will
be	devoted	to	outreach	bi-
monthly	to	Day	Care	Centers,
Nursery	&	Pre-Schools	and
Community	Centers	throughout
Bedford-Stuyvesant,	Bushwick
and	East	New	York.	This	staff
member	will	continue	to
distribute	promotional	packages
that	contain	information	about
the	school	and	our	programs,
open	houses	and	tours,	as	well
as,	hard	copies	of	the
application.	BCS	will	continue	to
foster	relationships	with	these
organizations	in	order	to	have	a
platform	to	give	presentations.
BCS	will	continue	to	attend
recruitment	fairs	throughout	the
school	year	(NYC	Charter	Center,
etc.).
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professional	photography	in
order	to	make	information	more
easily	accessible	and	user-
friendly.	BCS	did	a	social	media
launch	on	Instagram	in	order	to
get	more	information	about	the
school,	out	to	the	public.

Retention	Efforts	Toward	Meeting	Targets

Describe	Retention	Efforts	in
2020-2021

Describe	Retention	Plans	in
2021-2022

Because	BCS	is	located	in	one	of
the	most	underserved
communities	of	New	York	City,
recruitment	efforts	in	Bedford-
Stuyvesant	neighborhood,	as
well	as,	Bushwick	and	East	New
York	have	resulted	in	BCS	having
81%	of	students	considered
economically	disadvantaged	for
the	2020-21.	BCS	is	a	fully
inclusive	school	that	reflects	a
family-oriented	culture	where
students	and	families	feel
supported	academically,	socially
and	emotionally.	BCS	offered	free
breakfast	and	lunch	for	all
students	in	2020-21.	The	school
hosted	several	grade	level	parent
workshops	during	the	school	year
so	that	families	were	able	to
meet	teachers	and	faculty	in
order	to	become	familiar	with	the
school’s	curriculum	and
offerings.	The	school	continued
to	employ	two	deans	that
focused	on	positive
reinforcement	and	restorative
justice	in-person	and	remotely.
The	Deans	were	also	integral	in
supporting	our	teachers	with	our

BCS	will	continue	to	operate	as	a
fully	inclusive	school	that	reflects
a	family-oriented	culture	where
students	and	families	feel
supported	academically,	socially
and	emotionally.	The	school	will
continue	to	employ	two	deans
that	focus	on	positive
reinforcement	and	restorative
justice	when	we	open	fully	in	the
fall.	The	Deans	will	continue	to
support	our	teachers	with	our
Social	and	Emotional	Learning
program	with	guidance	from	our
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Social	and	Emotional	Learning
program	during	the	2020-21
school	year.	BCS	will	continued	to
operate	as	a	school	that	students
enjoyed	coming	to	everyday
whether	they	were	fully	remote,
hybrid	or	fully	in-person.	
When	school	is	a	joyous
environment	and	children	are
getting	their	academic,	social
and	emotional	needs	met,
retention	becomes	natural
because	students	do	not	want	to
leave	and	our	families	are	happy
and	satisfied	with	the	education
that	their	children	are	receiving.
Besides	the	retention	efforts
described	for	2020-21,	BCS
continued	to	provide	an	intensive
virtual	tutoring	program	that
focused	on	students	in	grades	K-
5	who	were	significantly	below
grade	level	in	ELA.	Groups	were
small,	prescribed	and	focused	on
data	collected	in	SY	2019-20
along	with	initial	data	from	2020-
21	to	drive	the	selection	and
instruction	for	these	students.
Due	to	the	COVID-19	pandemic,
BCS	decided	to	host	a	virtual
summer	program	for	students	in
grades	K-4	who	were	in	need	of
remediation	as	well	as
enrichment	in	order	to	continue
to	provide	a	resource	for	families.
BCS	will	continue	these	initiatives
in	the	2021-22	school	year	in
order	to	meet	retention	targets
as	families	were	pleased	with
student	outcomes.

School	Social	Worker	during	the
2021-22	school	year.	BCS	will
continue	to	provide	an	intensive
virtual/in-person	tutoring
program	that	will	focus	on
students	in	grades	K-5	who
continue	to	be	significantly	below
grade	level	in	ELA.	Groups	will	be
small,	prescribed	and	focus	on
data	collected	in	September	of
2021	to	drive	the	selection	and
instruction	for	these	students.
BCS	is	hosting	a	virtual	summer
enrichment	program	for	students
in	grades	K-5	who	are	in	need	of
remediation	as	well	as
enrichment	in	order	to	continue
to	provide	a	resource	for	families.
BCS	will	continue	to	operate	as	a
school	that	students	enjoy
coming	to	everyday	especially
since	we	will	continue	to	be	fully
open	to	in-person	learning	in	the
fall	of	2021.

BCS	continued	to	employ	a	full-
time	ELL	teacher	to	ensure	that
children	who	qualified	for
services	were	receiving	them.

BCS	will	maintain	the	position	of
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Our	ELL	teacher	worked	with	ELL
student’s	in-person	at	the	school
as	well	as	remotely	for	those
students	who	were	fully	remote
for	the	duration	of	the	2020-21
school	year.
For	the	2021-22	school	year	BCS
will	continue	to	employ	an	ELL
teacher	to	ensure	that	children
who	qualify	for	services	are
receiving	them.	A	focus	on	data
and	tracking	the	progress	of	our
ELL	students	will	drive	our	work
for	2021-22.	BCS	will	also
continue	to	translate	important
information	and	school
documents	in	most	of	the	first
languages	that	our	families
speak	so	that	they	are	informed
as	to	what	is	happening	within
the	school	in	order	to	feel	like
they	truly	belong	to	the	school
community.

a	full-time	ELL	teacher.	All
information	to	ELL	families	will	be
consistently	translated	in	their
home	languages	to	ensure	that
our	families	are	kept	in	the	loop
of	all	school	information	and
happenings.	Spanish	speaking
members	of	the	school	staff	and
the	parent	community	will
participate	at	all	community
outreach	events	and	information
sessions	to	ensure	that	native
Spanish	speakers	can	fully
understand	the	BCS	program.
BCS	will	provide	additional
support	to	ELL	families	to	ensure
that	they	are	comfortable	with
the	academic	and
emotional/social	growth	of	their
children	(workshops,	one-on-one
meetings,	etc.).

BCS	was	a	fully	inclusive	school
in	2020-21.	BCS	has	one	ICT
classroom	on	each	grade	level.
BCS	also	had	a	Special	Education
Coordinator	and	full-time	social
worker.	BCS	outsourced	for
speech	and	occupational	therapy
services	as	needed	based	on
Individual	Education	Plans.
BCS	will	continue	to	fully	operate
as	a	fully	inclusive	school	as	all
of	our	students	with	IEP’s	are
either	in	a	general	education
classroom	or	an	Integrated
Collaborative	Teaching	(ICT)
classroom,	depending	on	what
their	IEP	requires.	In	2021-22
BCS	will	have	one	ICT	classroom
on	each	grade	level.	BCS	will
continue	to	employ	a	Special
Education	Compliance

BCS	will	maintain	an	ICT
classroom	for	each	grade.	BCS
will	continue	to	offer	the
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Coordinator	and	will	have	a
Teacher-SPED	Coordinator	on-
site.	The	Teacher-SPED
Coordinator	will	be	responsible
for	ensuring	that	the	school’s
Response	to	Intervention	(RTI)
program	is	operating	effectively
so	that	children	who	are	“at-risk”
get	support	services	and	then
move	forward	with	an	evaluation
if	deemed	necessary.	The	school
will	also	employ	a	full-time	social
worker	and	will	add	a	full-time
SETSS	teacher,	occupational
therapy	and	speech	services	in
order	to	satisfy	the	needs	of	our
students	with	Individual
Education	Plans.	BCS	continued
its	intensive	tutoring	program
virtually	which	focused	on
students	in	grades	K-5	who	were
significantly	below	grade	level	in
ELA.	Groups	will	continue	to	be
small,	prescribed	and	focused	on
data	collected	in	SY	2020-21
along	with	initial	data	from	2021-
22	to	drive	the	selection	and
instruction	for	these	students.
BCS	also	decided	to	host	a	2021
virtual	summer	enrichment
program	for	students	in	grades	K-
5	who	were	in	need	of
remediation	as	well	as
enrichment	in	order	to	continue
to	provide	a	resource	for	families
during	the	pandemic.	BCS	will
continue	these	initiatives	in	the
2021-22	school	year	in	order	to
meet	retention	targets	as
families	were	pleased	with
student	outcomes.

supports	for	our	SWDs	by
providing	the	following
programs/resources:	Summer
Enrichment	Program,
Virtual/Afterschool	Tutoring,
Social	and	Emotional	Learning
program	for	all	students,	parent
workshops	to	inform	families	of
our	curriculum	and	instruction
and	offer	resources	to	aid	in	the
learning	loss	support	that	will	be
necessary,	supplemental
materials	in	reading	and	math	to
aid	in	differentiation	of	materials,
additional	support	faculty	to	aid
with	learning	loss	(Assistant
Teachers,	SETSS/AIS	teacher,
etc.)	and	enhanced	technology	to
support	our	instructional
program	(SMART	Boards,
upgraded	electronic	devices,
etc.)	BCS	will	hire	a	full-time
SETSS/AIS	teacher	to	support	the
SPED	program.

Entry	10	–	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition
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Completed	 	Jul	27	2021

Form	for	"Entry	10	–	Teacher	and	Administrator
Attrition"	Revised	to	Employee	Fingerprint
Requirements	Attestation
A.	TEACH	System	–	Employee	Clearance

Charter	schools	must	ensure	that	all	prospective	employees[1]	receive	clearance	through	the	NYSED	Office
of	School	Personnel	Review	and	Accountability	(OSPRA)	prior	to	employment.	This	includes

paraprofessionals	and	other	school	personnel	that	are	provided	or	assigned	by	the	district	of

location,	or	related/contracted	service	providers.	After	an	employee	has	been	cleared,	schools	are
required	to	maintain	proof	of	such	clearance	in	the	file	of	each	employee.	For	the	safety	of	all	students,
charter	schools	must	take	immediate	steps	to	terminate	the	employment	of	individuals	who	have	been
denied	clearance.	Once	the	employees	have	been	terminated,	the	school	must	terminate	the	request	for
clearance	in	the	TEACH	system.

In	the	Annual	Report,	charter	schools	are	asked	to	confirm	that	all	employees	have	been	cleared	through
the	NYSED	TEACH	system;	and,	if	denied	clearance,	confirm	that	the	individual	or	employee	has	been
removed	from	the	TEACH	system,	and	is	not	employed	by	the	school.

[1]	Employees	that	must	be	cleared	include,	but	are	not	limited	to,	teachers,	administrative	staff,	janitors,
security	personnel	and	cafeteria	workers,	and	other	staff	who	are	present	when	children	are	in	the	school
building.	This	includes	paraprofessionals	and	other	school	personnel	that	are	provided	or

assigned	by	the	district	of	location,	as	well	as	related/contracted	service	providers.	See	NYSED
memorandum	dated	October	1,	2019	at
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf		or	visit	the
NYSED	website	at:	http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html	for	more	information
regarding	who	must	be	fingerprinted.	Also	see,	8	NYCRR	§87.2.
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B.	Emergency	Conditional	Clearances

Charter	schools	are	strongly	discouraged	from	using	the	emergency	conditional	clearance	provisions	for
prospective	employees.	This	is	because	the	school	must	simultaneously	request	clearance	through	NYSED
TEACH,	and	the	school’s	emergency	conditional	clearance	of	the	employee	terminates	automatically	once
the	school	receives	notification	from	NYSED	regarding	the	clearance	request.	Status	notification	is	provided
for	all	prospective	employees	through	the	NYSED	TEACH	portal	within	48	hours	after	the	clearance	request
is	submitted.	Therefore,	at	most,	a	school’s	emergency	conditional	clearance	will	be	valid	for	only	48	hours
after	approval	by	the	board.

Schools	are	not	permitted	to	renew	or	in	any	way	re-establish	a	prospective	employee’s	emergency
conditional	clearance	after	status	notification	is	sent	by	NYSED	through	the	TEACH	portal.

Schools	are	asked	to	attest	that	they	have	reviewed	and	understand	these	requirements.	More	information
can	be	found	in	the	memo	at
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf.

Attestation

Responses	Selected:

I	hereby	attest	that	the	school	has	reviewed,	understands,	and	will	comply	with	these	requirements.

Entry	11	Percent	of	Uncertified	Teachers
Completed	 	Jul	27	2021

Instructions

Required	of	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Charter	Schools	ONLY	

The	table	below	reflects	the	information	collected	through	the	online	portal	for	compliance	with	New
York	State	Education	Law	2854(3)(a-1)	for	teaching	staff	qualifications.		Uncertified	teachers	are	those
not	certified	pursuant	to	the	State	Certification	Requirements	established	by	the	NYSED	Commissioner	of
Education.	

Enter	the	relevant	full-time	equivalent	(FTE)	count	of	teachers	in	each	column.		For	example,	a	school
with	20	full-time	teachers	and	5	half-time	teachers	would	have	an	FTE	count	of	22.5.	

Entry	11	Uncertified	Teachers
School	Name:						

	 	 g	 	 	
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Instructions	for	Reporting	Percent	of	Uncertified
Teachers
Required	of	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Charter	Schools	

The	 table	 below	 reflects	 the	 information	 collected	 through	 the	 online	 portal	 for	 compliance

with	New	York	State	Education	Law	2854(3)(a-1)	 for	teaching	staff	qualifications.	Uncertified

teachers	are	those	not	certified	pursuant	to	the	State	Certification	Requirements	established

by	the	NYSED	Commissioner	of	Education.	Enter	the	relevant	full-time	equivalent	(FTE)	count

of	teachers	 in	each	column.	For	example,	a	school	with	20	full-time	teachers	and	5	half-time

teachers	would	have	an	FTE	count	of	22.5.

If	more	than	one	line	applies	to	a	teacher,	please	include	in	only	one	FTE	uncertified	category.	Please	do
not	include	paraprofessionals,	such	as	teacher	aides.

CATEGORY	A.	30%	OR	5	UNCERTIFIED	TEACHERS	WHICHEVER	IS	LESS

FTE	Count

i.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teacher	with	at	least
three	years	of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary
classroom	teaching	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

2

ii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are
tenured	or	tenure	track	college	faculty	(as	of	June
30,	2021)

0

iii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years
of	Teach	for	America	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

0

iv.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with
exceptional	business,	professional,	artistic,
athletic,	or	military	experience	(as	June	30,	2021)

2

Total	Category	A:	5	or	30%	whichever	is	less 4.0
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CATEGORY	B.	PLUS	FIVE	UNCERTIFIED	TEACHERS	IN	MATHEMATICS,	SCIENCE,	COMPUTER

SCIENCE,	TECHNOLOGY	OR	CAREER	AND	TECHNICAL	EDUCATION.

FTE	Count

i.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teacher	with	at	least
three	years	of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary
classroom	teaching	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

0

ii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are
tenured	or	tenure	track	college	faculty	(as	of	June
30,	2021)

0

iii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years
of	Teach	for	America	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

0

iv.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with
exceptional	business,	professional,	artistic,
athletic,	or	military	experience	(as	June	30,	2021)

0

Total	Category	B:	not	to	exceed	5 0.0



39	/	42

CATEGORY	C:	PLUS	5	ADDITIONAL	UNCERTIFIED	TEACHERS

FTE	Count

i.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teacher	with	at	least
three	years	of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary
classroom	teaching	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

0

ii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are
tenured	or	tenure	track	college	faculty	(as	of	June
30,	2021)

0

iii.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years
of	Teach	for	America	experience	(as	of	June	30,
2021)

0

iv.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with
exceptional	business,	professional,	artistic,
athletic,	or	military	experience	(as	June	30,	2021)

0

Total	Category	C:	not	to	exceed	5 0.0

CATEGORY	D:	TOTAL	FTE	COUNT	OF	UNCATEGORIZED,	UNCERTIFIED	TEACHERS

(Include	teachers	who	do	not	fit	in	one	of	these	categories	or	if	did	fit	would	exceed	the	numerical	limits	for
that	category)

FTE	Count

Total	Category	D 1

CATEGORY	E:	TOTAL	FTE	COUNT	OF	CERTIFIED	TEACHERS

FTE	Count

Total	Category	E 16
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CATEGORY	F:	TOTAL	FTE	COUNT	OF	ALL	TEACHERS

Please	do	not	include	paraprofessionals,	such	as	teacher	aides.

FTE	Count

Total	Category	F 21

Thank	you.

Entry	12	Organization	Chart
Completed	 	Jul	28	2021

Instructions

Required	of	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Charter	Schools	ONLY	

Upload	the	2020-2021	Organization	Chart.	The	organization	chart	should	include	position	titles	and
reporting	relationships.	Employee	names	should	not	appear	on	the	chart

BCS	Organizational	Chart	20-21

Filename:	BCS Organizational Chart 20 21.pdf	Size:	475.3	kB

Entry	13	School	Calendar
Completed	 	Jul	28	2021

Instructions	for	submitting	School	Calendar

Required	of	ALL	Charter	Schools

Given	these	uncertain	and	changing	times,	charter	schools	may	or	may	not	have	a	school	calendar	ready
to	upload	by	the	submission	deadline	this	year	of	August	2,	2021.	If	the	charter	school	has	a	tentative
calendar	based	on	available	information	and	guidance	at	the	time,	please	submit	with	the	August	2nd
submission.	Charter	schools	will	be	able	to	upload	an	updated	school	calendar	into	the	portal	at	any	time
but	no	later	than	September	15,	2021.	

School	calendars	must	meet	the	minimum	instructional	requirements	as	required	of	other	public	schools
“…	unless	the	school’s	charter	requires	more	instructional	time	than	is	required	under	the	regulations.”

Board	of	Regents-authorized	charter	schools	are	required	to	submit	school	calendars	that	clearly	indicate
the	start	and	end	date	of	the	instructional	year	AND	the	number	of	instructional	hours	and/or
instructional	days	for	each	month.

PLEASE	NOTE:	This	is	a	required	task,	and	it	is	marked	optional	for	administrative	purposes
only.
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2021-2022	BCS	School	Calendar

Filename:	2021 2022 BCS School Calendar.pdf	Size:	138.0	kB

Entry	14	Links	to	Critical	Documents	on	School	Website
Completed	 	Jul	30	2021

Instructions

Required	of	Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Charter	Schools	ONLY	

By	law,	each	charter	school	is	required	to	maintain	certain	notices	and	policies	listed	on	its	website.
Please	insert	the	link	from	the	school’s	website	for	each	of	the	items:

1.	 Most	recently	filed	Annual	Report	(i.e.,	2019-2020	Annual	Report);
2.	 Most	recent	board	meeting	notice,	documents	to	be	discussed	at	the	meeting	(if	any),	and

webcast	of	Board	meetings	(if	held	virtually	per	Governor’s	Executive	Order);
3.	 Link	to	New	York	State	School	Report	Card;
4.	 Lottery	Notice	announcing	date	of	lottery;
5.	 Authorizer-approved	DASA	Policy;	
6.	 District-wide	safety	plan	and	Authorizer-approved	Discipline	Policy	(as	per	August	29,

2019	Emergency	Response	Plan	Memo);
7.	 Authorizer-approved	FOIL	Policy;	and
8.	 Subject	matter	list	of	FOIL	records.
9.	 	Link	to	School	Reopening	Plan

Form	for	Entry	14	Links	to	Critical	Documents	on
School	Website
School	Name:			Brooklyn	Charter	School		
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Required	of	ALL	Charter	Schools	noting	that	SUNY-authorized	charter	schools	are	not	required

to	submit	item	5:	Authorizer-approved	DASA	policy	

By	law,	each	charter	school	is	required	to	maintain	certain	notices	and	policies	listed	on	its

website.	Please	insert	the	link	from	the	school’s	website	for	each	of	the	items:

Link	to	Documents

1.	Most	Recent	Annual	Report	(i.e.,	2019-20) https://brooklyncharter.org/about/school-
documents/

2.	Most	recent	board	meeting	notice,	documents	to
be	discussed	at	the	meeting	(if	any)

https://brooklyncharter.org/tag/board-of-trustees-
meetings/

2a.	Webcast	of	Board	Meetings	(per	Governor's
Executive	Order)

https://brooklyncharter.org/about/school-
documents/

3.	Link	to	NYS	School	Report	Card https://brooklyncharter.org/about/school-
documents/

4.	Lottery	Notice	announcing	date	of	lottery https://brooklyncharter.org/brooklyn-charter-
schools-public-lottery/

5.	Authorizer-approved	DASA	Policy	(For	Regents,
NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	Authorized	Charter
Schools	ONLY);

https://brooklyncharter.org/about/school-
documents/

6.	District-wide	Safety	Plan https://brooklyncharter.org/about/school-
documents/

6a.	Authorizer-Approved	Discipline	Policy	(as	per
August	29,	2019	Emergency	Response	Plan	Memo) https://brooklyncharter.org/parents/documents/

7.	Authorizer-Approved	FOIL	Policy https://brooklyncharter.org/about/school-
documents/

8.	Subject	matter	list	of	FOIL	records https://brooklyncharter.org/about/school-
documents/

Thank	you.	
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Independent	Auditor’s	Report 

 
To the Board of Trustees of 
Brooklyn Charter School 
 
Report	on	the	Financial	Statements	
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Brooklyn Charter School (the “School”), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 
 
Management’s	Responsibility	for	the	Financial	Statements	
	
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
Auditor’s	Responsibility	
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government	Auditing	Standards,	
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.  
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Opinion	
	
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Brooklyn Charter School as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  
 
Report	on	Summarized	Comparative	Information	
	
We have previously audited the School’s 2020 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified 
audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 29, 2020. In our 
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2020 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has 
been derived.  
 
Other	Reporting	Required	by	Government	Auditing	Standards	
	
In accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 14, 
2021, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government	 Auditing	 Standards	 in 
considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 

Schall & Ashenfarb  
Certified Public Accountants, LLC 

 
October 14, 2021 
 
 



6/30/21 6/30/20

Cash and cash equivalents $387,928 $211,164
Investments (Note 3) 2,144,374 1,789,540
Government grants receivable 150,463 123,813
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 39,348 15,761
Employee loans receivable 2,750 706
Restricted cash (Note 4) 75,126 75,075
Fixed assets, net (Note 5) 142,729 74,397

Total assets $2,942,718 $2,290,456

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $100,063 $131,003
Accrued payroll and payroll related liabilities 421,420 455,301

     Government grants advances  - per pupil funding (Note 6) 48,297 0
Total liabilities 569,780 586,304

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions 1,841,308 1,245,226
With donor restrictions (Note 7 and 8) 531,630 458,926

Total net assets 2,372,938 1,704,152

Total liabilities and net assets $2,942,718 $2,290,456

BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL

AT JUNE 30, 2021
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

(With comparative totals at June 30, 2020)

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements.   
3



Without With
Donor Donor Total Total 

Restrictions Restrictions 6/30/21 6/30/20
Public support and revenue:

Public school district revenue: (Note 6)
Resident student enrollment $3,359,727 $3,359,727 $3,553,016
Students with special education services 517,257 517,257 388,913

Total public school district revenue 3,876,984 0 3,876,984 3,941,929

Government grants 222,673 222,673 178,894
Contributions 10,340 10,340 23,829
In-kind contributions 1,415,594 1,415,594 1,253,314
Interest and dividends 30,236 4,317 34,553 43,314
Other income 3,942 3,942 39,950

Total public support and revenue 5,559,769 4,317 5,564,086 5,481,230

Expenses:
Program services:

Instructional support 4,164,763 4,164,763 4,301,607
Supporting services:

Management and general 1,051,002 1,051,002 946,973

Total expenses 5,215,765 0 5,215,765 5,248,580

Change in net assets from operations 344,004 4,317 348,321 232,650

Non operating activity:
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments 252,078 68,387 320,465 42,063

Change in net assets 596,082 72,704 668,786 274,713

Net assets - beginning of year 1,245,226 458,926 1,704,152 1,429,439

Net assets - end of year $1,841,308 $531,630 $2,372,938 $1,704,152

BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements.       
4



Program Supporting
Services Services

Management Total Total
Instructional and Expenses Expenses

Support General 6/30/21 6/30/20

Salaries $2,246,168 $508,169 $2,754,337 $2,918,021
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 564,191 127,642 691,833 724,069

Total personnel costs 2,810,359 635,811 3,446,170 3,642,090

Professional development 2,468 5,757 8,225 32,320
Professional fees 84,649 84,649 92,007
Student and staff recruitment 7,788 18,491 26,279 8,403
Supplies and materials 50,984 12,134 63,118 58,307
Office expense 31,146 8,044 39,190 46,993
Student services 17,422 17,422 20,206
Insurance 47,798 10,815 58,613 52,643
Technology 13,638 5,824 19,462 8,766
Occupancy and facility costs (in-kind) 1,154,420 261,174 1,415,594 1,253,314
Depreciation 28,740 6,502 35,242 30,784
Board expenses 0 909
Other 1,801 1,801 1,838

  Total other than personnel costs 1,354,404 415,191 1,769,595 1,606,490

Total expenses $4,164,763 $1,051,002 $5,215,765 $5,248,580

BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements.       
5



6/30/21 6/30/20
Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets $668,786 $274,713
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
  to net cash provided by operating activities:

Net realized and unrealized gain on investments (320,465) (42,063)
Depreciation 35,242 30,784
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Government grants receivable  - per pupil 48,297 10,038
Government grants receivable (26,650) (81,188)
Contributions receivable 0 15,000
Prepaid expenses and other receivables (23,587) (5,677)
Employee loans receivable (2,044) 10,154
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (30,940) (16,463)
Accrued payroll and payroll related liabilities (33,881) 11,962

Total adjustments (354,028) (67,453)
Net cash provided by operating activities 314,758 207,260

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of furniture and equipment (103,574) (49,591)
Purchase of investments (740,098) (473,726)
Proceeds from sales of investments 705,729 430,605

Net cash used for investing activities (137,943) (92,712)

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 176,815 114,548

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash - beginning of year 286,239 171,691

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash - end of year $463,054 $286,239

Reconciliation to statement of financial position:
Cash and cash equivalents 387,928 211,164
Restricted cash 75,126 75,075

Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 463,054 286,239

Supplemental disclosures:
Interest and taxes paid $0 $0

Noncash contributions $0 $0

BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2020)

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements.   
6
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BROOKLYN	CHARTER	SCHOOL	
NOTES	TO	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	

JUNE	30,	2021	
 
Note	1	‐	 Organization	and	Nature	of	Activities 

 
Brooklyn Charter School (the “School”), located in Brooklyn, New York, is a not-for-profit 
education corporation chartered by the Board of Regents of the State of New York. The 
School provides a full range of educational services appropriate for grade levels K, 1, 2, 3, 4 
and 5. The School completed the 2020-2021 fiscal year with an average enrollment of 
approximately 208 students. The School is a publicly funded, privately managed school, 
which is independent of the New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE”). 
 
On May 23, 2019, the Board of Regents of the State of New York, for and on behalf of the 
State Education Department, granted an extension of the provisional charter up through 
and including June 30, 2022. 
 
The School has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is a not-for-profit 
organization exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and has not been determined to be a private foundation. 

 
Note	2	‐	 Significant	Accounting	Policies 
 

a. Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements of the School have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is the method of recognizing revenue and expenses when earned or 
incurred regardless of when cash is received or paid.  
 

b. Basis of Presentation 
Not-for-profit organizations report information regarding its financial position and 
activities according to specific classes of net assets, as follows: 
 
 Net	Assets	Without	Donor	Restrictions – accounts for activity without donor-

imposed restrictions.  
 

 Net	Assets	With	Donor	Restrictions – relates to activity based on specific donor 
restrictions that are expected to be satisfied by the passage of time or 
performance of activities. 
 

c. Revenue Recognition 
The School follows the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) Accounting 
Standards Update (“ASU”) 2018-08 (“Topic 605”) for recording contributions. 
Contributions are recognized at the earlier of when cash is received or at the time a 
pledge becomes unconditional in nature. Contributions are recorded in the net asset 
classes referred to above depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-
imposed restriction.  
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When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends, or purpose 
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net 
assets without donor restrictions. If donor restricted contributions are satisfied in the 
same period they were received, they are classified as without donor restrictions. 
 
The School’s public-school district revenue and other government grants are primarily 
conditional, non-exchange transactions and fall under Topic 605. Revenue from these 
transactions is recognized based on rates established by the School’s funding sources 
and when performance related outcomes are achieved as well as other conditions 
under the agreements are met. 

 
Contributions and grants expected to be received within one year are recorded at net 
realizable value. Long-term pledges are recorded at fair value using a risk adjusted 
discounted rate. Pledges are reviewed for collectability. Based on knowledge of specific 
donors and factoring in historical experience, no allowance for doubtful accounts exists 
as of June 30, 2021 or June 30, 2020. Write-offs will be made directly to operations in 
the period the receivable is deemed to be uncollectable. Conditional contributions are 
recognized as income when the conditions have been substantially met.  
 

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Checking and money market accounts with local banks and highly liquid debt 
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less are considered to be 
cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the accompanying statement of cash flows. 
Cash maintained in escrow per requirements of NYCDOE are treated as restricted cash. 
 
The School follows ASU 2016-18, Statement	of	Cash	Flows	(Topic	230):	Restricted	Cash.	
This requires that restricted cash and cash equivalents be included as components of 
total cash and cash equivalents as presented on the statement of cash flows. 
 

e. Investments 
Investments are recorded at fair value, which refers to the price that would be received 
to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are recognized in the 
statement of activities. 

 
f. Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets are stated at cost or fair value at the date of the gift, if donated. The School 
capitalizes fixed assets in excess of pre-defined amounts that have a useful life of more 
than one year. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful life of each asset, which generally ranges between 5 and 7 years. 
 

g. Contributed Space 
The School’s operations are located in a facility provided by NYCDOE at a charge of 
$1.00 per annum and utilizes approximately 15,440 square feet. As such, the School has 
recorded the estimated fair value of this space as in-kind revenue and expense in the 
financial statements. 
 

h. Functional Allocation of Expenses 
The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on 
a functional basis in the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. Such 
allocations are determined by management on an equitable basis. 
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The following expenses were allocated using time and effort as the basis: 
 

 Salaries 
 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
 Office expenses 
 Insurance 
 Rent and utilities 
 Depreciation 

 
All other expenses have been charged directly to the applicable program or supporting 
services. 
 

i. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

j. Summarized Comparative Information 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative 
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include 
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information 
should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2020, from which the summarized information was derived.  
 

k. Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 
The School does not believe its financial statements include any material, uncertain tax 
positions. Tax returns for periods ending June 30, 2018 and later are subject to 
examination by applicable taxing authorities. 
 

l. New Accounting Pronouncements 
FASB issued ASU No. 2020-07, Presentation	and	Disclosures	by	Not‐for‐Profit	Entities	for	
Contributed	Nonfinancial	Assets,	which becomes effective for the June 30, 2022 year 
with early adoption permitted. This ASU focuses on improving transparency in the 
reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets and requires a separate line-item 
presentation on the statement of activities and additional disclosures. 
 
FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. The ASU which becomes effective for the June 30, 
2023 year, requires the full obligation of long-term leases to be recorded as a liability 
with a corresponding “right to use asset” on the statement of financial position. 
 
The School is in the process of evaluating the impact these standards will have on future 
financial statements. 

 
	
	
	



 

 10

Note	3	‐	 Investments		
 
Accounting standards have established a fair value hierarchy giving the highest priority to 
quoted market prices in active markets and the lowest priority to unobservable data.  
 
The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows: 
 
Level 1 – Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 

assets or liabilities that the School has the ability to access. 

Level 2 –  Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all 
significant inputs are not observable, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 – Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall 
fair value measurement. 

Investment balances consist of the following: 
 
  June 30, 2021  

   Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
 
Money markets $26,921 $26,921 $0 $0 
Equity mutual funds: 
   U.S. large cap 834,081 834,081 0 0 
   EEFE equity 212,261 212,261 0 0 
   Japanese large cap 75,132 75,132 0 0 
   Asia ex-Japan equity 38,817 38,817 0 0 
   Emerging market equity 43,477 43,477 0 0 
   European large cap 58,746 58,746 0 0 
Fixed income mutual funds: 
   U.S. fixed income 335,045 335,045 0 0 
   Non-U.S. fixed income 279,910 279,910 0 0 
   Global fixed income      239,984      239,984    0              0 
Total $2,144,374 $2,144,374           $0            $0 
 
 
  June 30, 2020  

   Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
 
Money markets $52,757 $52,757 $0 $0 
Equity mutual funds: 
   U.S. large cap 664,615 664,615 0 0 
   EEFE equity 194,707 194,707 0 0 
   Japanese large cap 32,584 32,584 0 0 
   Asia ex-Japan equity 16,643 16,643 0 0 
Fixed income mutual funds: 
   U.S. fixed income 651,971 651,971 0 0 
   Non-U.S. fixed income      176,263   176,263    0              0 
Total $1,789,540 $1,789,540           $0            $0 
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Level 1 securities are valued at the closing price reported on the active market that they are 
traded on.  
 
These methods produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable 
value or reflective of future values. The use of different methodologies or assumptions to 
determine the fair value or certain financial instruments could result in different fair value 
measurements. 

 
Note	4	‐	 Restricted	Cash	
	

An escrow account has been established to meet the requirement of NYCDOE. The purpose 
of this account is to ensure sufficient funds are available for an orderly dissolution or 
transition process in the event of termination of the charter or school closure. 
 

Note	5	‐	 Fixed	Assets	
 
Fixed assets consist of the following: 
 6/30/21 6/30/20 

Furniture and equipment $721,657 $618,083 
Less: accumulated depreciation (578,928) (543,686) 
Furniture and equipment, net  $142,729   $74,397 

 
Note	6	‐	 Government	Grants	(Advances)/	Receivable	–	per	pupil	funding		
	

	 6/30/21 6/30/20 

Beginning grants advances $0 $10,038 
Funding based on allowable FTE’s 3,876,984 3,941,929 
Cash receipts (3,925,281) (3,951,967) 
Ending grants advances      ($48,297)                  $0 

		
Note	7	‐		 Net	Assets	With	Donor	Restrictions		

	 	
The following summarizes the activity of net assets with donor restrictions: 

 
  June 30, 2021  
 
 Beginning   Released Ending 
 Balance   from Balance 
 7/1/20   Increases  Restrictions 6/30/21 
W.E.A.L.T.H.Y. Program $7,946     $0 $0 $7,946 
Learning Partners Program 1,228 0 0 1,228 
Endowment fund (See Note 8)   449,752   72,704              0   522,456 
Total $458,926 $72,704  $0 $531,630 
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  June 30, 2020  
 
 Beginning   Released Ending 
 Balance   from Balance 
 7/1/19   Increases  Restrictions 6/30/20 
W.E.A.L.T.H.Y. Program $7,946     $0 $0 $7,946 
Learning Partners Program 1,228 0 0 1,228 
Endowment fund (See Note 8)   431,429   18,323              0   449,752 
Total $440,603 $18,323  $0 $458,926 
 

Note	8	‐		 Endowment	Funds	
	

Included in the investment funds is a contribution from a related entity, Sheltering Arms 
Children’s Service (“SACS”). Pursuant to its plan of dissolution and distribution of assets, 
which was approved by the Supreme Court of the State of New York, the School was 
required to establish a donor-restricted endowment in perpetuity. 
 
Interpretation	of	Relevant	Law	
	
The School follows New York Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (“NYPMIFA”), 
which the board of directors has interpreted to require certain amounts to be retained in 
perpetuity. Absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary, the fair value of the original 
gift as of the gift date for all donor-restricted endowment funds will be preserved. However, 
under certain circumstances, the School has the right to appropriate for expenditure the 
fair value of the original gift in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence 
specifically prescribed by NYPMIFA.  
 
As a result of this interpretation, the School classifies as donor-restricted in perpetuity (a) 
the original value of gifts donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent 
gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the endowment made in accordance with 
the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added 
to the fund.  
 
Absent any specific donor-stipulations, endowment earnings are classified as donor 
restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the School. 
 
Spending	Policies	
 
In accordance with NYPMIFA, the following factors are considered in making a 
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:  
 
(1) The duration and preservation of the fund; 
(2) The purposes of the School’s mission and the donor-restricted endowment fund; 
(3) General economic conditions; 
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation; 
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments; 
(6) Other resources available; 
(7) The investment policies; 
(8) Where appropriate and circumstances would otherwise warrant alternatives to 

expenditure of the endowment fund, giving due consideration to the effect that such 
alternatives may have. 
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The board made no appropriations from the endowment during the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020. 
 
Endowment	Investment	Policies	
	
Endowment assets were pooled with other investments and follow organization-wide 
investment policy.   
	
Funds	with	Deficiencies	
	
From time-to-time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted 
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or NYPMIFA requires to be 
retained as a fund of perpetual duration. There were no such deficiencies at June 30, 2021 
and 2020. 
 
Changes in endowment net assets can be summarized as follows: 
 
  June 30, 2021  

 Endowment Endowment  
 Corpus Earnings Total 
Endowment net assets, 
   beginning of year $366,667 $83,085 $449,752 
Investment income 0 4,317 4,317 
Net realized/unrealized gain                 0    68,387      68,387 
Endowment net assets, 
   end of year  $366,667 $155,789 $522,456 

 
  June 30, 2020  

 Endowment Endowment  
 Corpus Earnings Total 
Endowment net assets, 
   beginning of year $366,667 $64,762 $431,429 
Investment income 0 6,674 6,674 
Net realized/unrealized gain                 0    11,649      11,649 
Endowment net assets, 
   end of year  $366,667  $83,085 $449,752 

 
Note	9	‐		 Retirement	Plan		

 
The School sponsors a 401(k)-profit sharing plan. Employees at least 21 years old are 
eligible to participate. The School’s contributions are determined annually, on a 
discretionary basis, which was 4% through the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. The 
total amount of employer contributions was $35,378 and $37,063 for the years ended June 
30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  
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Note	10	‐		 Commitments	and	Contingencies 
 
On July 1, 2005, the School and NYCDOE signed a facility shared use agreement for the use 
of certain dedicated space within a New York City public school. The agreement has been 
renewed on a year-to-year basis. NYCDOE provides various operating services to the School 
including utilities, custodial and maintenance services, and charges a user fee of $1.00 per 
annum. See Note 2g for contributed space disclosure. 
 
Government contracts are subject to audit by the grantor. Management does not believe 
that any audits, if they were to occur, would result in material disallowed costs, and has not 
established any reserves. Any disallowed costs would be recorded in the period notified. 
 
In the normal course of business, the School is involved in proceedings, lawsuits, and other 
claims. These matters are subject to many uncertainties, and outcomes are not predictable 
with a high degree of assurance. Consequently, the ultimate aggregate amount of monetary 
liability or financial impact with respect to these matters as of June 30, 2021 cannot be 
ascertained. Management believes that the final outcome of these matters will not have a 
material impact on the financial statements of the School. 
 

Note	11	‐	 Significant	Concentrations 
	

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the School to concentration of credit risk, 
consist of cash, money market accounts and investment securities. The School places its 
temporary cash and money market accounts, with financial institutions that management 
deems to be creditworthy. At year end, and at various times throughout the year, balances 
were in excess of federally insured amounts. However, the School has not experienced any 
losses due to bank failure. The market value of investments is subject to fluctuation; 
however, management believes the investment policy is prudent for the long-term welfare 
of the School. 
 
The School is dependent upon grants from NYCDOE to carry out its operations. Revenue 
from NYCDOE was 70% and 72% of the School’s total public support and revenue for the 
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

	
Note	12	‐	 Liquidity	and	Availability	of	Financial	Resources	

 
The School maintains cash on hand to be available for its general expenditures, liabilities, 
and other obligations for on-going operations. As part of its liquidity management, the 
School operates its programs within a board-approved budget and relies primarily on NYC 
per pupil funding to fund its operations and program activities. 
 



 

 15

The following reflects the School’s financial assets at June 30, 2021 that are available to 
meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year: 
 
Cash and cash equivalents $387,928 
Investments 2,144,374 
Government grants receivable 150,463 
Employee loans receivable         2,750 
  Total financial assets $2,685,515 
  
Less amounts not available to be used within one year: 
     Donor restricted assets     (531,630) 
   
 
Financial assets available to meet cash needs  
    for general expenditures within one year $2,153,885 

 
Note	13	‐	 Subsequent	Events	
 

Management has evaluated the impact of all subsequent events through October 14, 2021, 
which is the date that the financial statements were available to be issued. No events have 
occurred subsequent to the statement of financial position date, through our evaluation 
date, that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements. 

	
Note	14	‐	 Other	Matters	

 
On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak a 
"Public Health Emergency of International Concern" and on March 10, 2020, declared it to 
be a pandemic. Actions taken around the world to help mitigate the spread of the 
coronavirus include restrictions on travel, quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures 
for certain types of public places and businesses. The coronavirus and actions taken to 
mitigate it have had and are expected to continue to have an impact on the economies and 
financial markets of many countries, including the geographical area in which the 
Organization operates. As of the date of these financial statements, many of the travel 
restrictions and stay at home orders have been lifted, however supply chains remain 
impacted. Management continues to monitor the outbreak, however, as of the date of these 
financial statements, the potential impact cannot be quantified. 
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REPORT	ON	INTERNAL	CONTROL	OVER	FINANCIAL	REPORTING	
AND	ON	COMPLIANCE	AND	OTHER	MATTERS	BASED	ON	AN	

AUDIT	OF	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	PERFORMED	IN	
ACCORDANCE	WITH	GOVERNMENT	AUDITING	STANDARDS	

 
 

Independent	Auditor’s	Report	
 
To the Board of Trustees of 
Brooklyn Charter School 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government	Auditing	Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Brooklyn Charter 
School (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended and the 
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 14, 2021. 
 
Internal	Control	over	Financial	Reporting	
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency	 in	 internal	 control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material	 weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant	deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a 
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs 
as item 2021-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 
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Compliance	and	Other	Matters	
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatements, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government	Auditing	Standards.	 
 
Brooklyn	Charter	School’s	Response	to	Findings	
 
The response from the School to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The response was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose	of	this	Report	
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government	Auditing	 Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
 
  
 

Schall & Ashenfarb 
Certified Public Accountants, LLC 
 

October 14, 2021 
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BROOKLYN	CHARTER	SCHOOL	
SCHEDULE	OF	FINDINGS	AND	QUESTIONED	COSTS	

JUNE	30,	2021	
 
 
Current Year: 
 
								2021‐001	–	Reconciliation	of	per	pupil	revenue		
 

Criteria: The School receives funding from the New York City Department of Education 
(“NYCDOE”) based on attendance of the students. The School is required to keep records of 
students and attendance which is used to update the NYCDOE’s attendance tracking system for 
each billing period. The School receives funding from NYCDOE based on this information. At the 
end of the year the School should reconcile its records with the NYCDOE to ensure the accuracy 
of the student’s attendance and proper revenue recognition.  
 
Condition: Four students at Brooklyn Charter School only attended school during part of the 
year under audit and were included in the final billing as if they had attended for the full year.   
 
Cause: The final reconciliation report was not reviewed and compared to the School’s 
attendance records timely, which resulted in a discrepancy in the bill submitted to the NYCDOE, 
and the amount of revenue recognized.   
 
Effect: The School might be overpaid for the students that did not attend for part of the year.  
	
Recommendation: A review of the attendance records and final billing of per pupil funding 
should be completed timely prior to submitting to the NYCDOE. 
 
Views	of	Responsible	Officials: See Corrective Action Plan attached.  

 
 

Prior Year: 
 
None 





	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

MANAGEMENT	LETTER	
 

To the Board of Directors of  
Brooklyn Charter School 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of The Brooklyn Charter School (the 
“School”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no 
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. 
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider 
to be material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the School’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. We consider the following deficiency in the School’s internal control to be 
significant deficiency:  
 
I	–	Significant	Deficiency: 
 
Reconciliation of per pupil attendance 
The School receives funding from the New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE”) based 
on attendance of the students. The School is required to keep records of students and attendance 
which is used to update the NYCDOE’s attendance tracking system for each billing period. The 
School receives funding from NYCDOE based on this information. At the end of the year the School 
reconciles its records with the NYCDOE to ensure the accuracy of the student’s attendance and that  
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revenue was recognized properly. We noted that four students at Brooklyn Charter School only 
attended school during part of the year under audit and were included in the final billing as if they 
had attended the full year. The final reconciliation report was not reviewed and compared to the 
School’s attendance records timely, which resulted in a discrepancy in the bill submitted to the 
NYCDOE. 
 
We recommend that the School perform a review of the attendance records and final billing of per 
pupil funding. This should be completed prior to submitting to the NYCDOE. 
	
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit and finance committee, the 
board of directors and management and others within the organization and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Schall & Ashenfarb 
       Certified Public Accountants, LLC 
October 14, 2021 



J.P. Morgan Team

Savings Account Summary

  

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
P O Box 182051
Columbus, OH 43218 - 2051

Primary Account: 

For the Period 9/1/21 to 9/30/21

www.jpmorganonline.com

Instances Amount

Beginning Balance 75,132.32

Ending Balance 1 $75,135.39

Charles Ney Heisey (866) 215-5136
Priyanka Gandhi

For assistance after business hours, 7 days a week. (800) 243-6727
Deaf and Hard of Hearing (800) 242-7383
Online access:  

BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
545 WILLOUGHBY AVE FL 3
BROOKLYN NY 11206  

Deposits & Credits 1 3.07
Annual Percentage Yield Earned This Period* 0.05%
Interest Paid This Period $3.07
Interest Paid Year-to-Date $31.61

Page 1 of 4

*Annual Percentage Yield Earned is an annualized rate that reflects the relationship between the amount of interest actually earned on the account during this statement period and the average daily
balance in this account for the same period.

JPMorgan Business Savings                       



Transaction Detail

Primary 

For the Period 9/1/21 to 9/30/21BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL

Date Description
Deposits &

Credits
Transfers &

Withdrawals Balance

09/01 Beginning Balance 75,132.32

09/30 Ending Balance $75,135.39

Total $3.07 ($0.00)

09/30 Interest Payment 3.07 75,135.39

Page 2 of 4



 

Important Information About Your Statement

 Investment Products: Not FDIC insured � No bank guarantee � May lose value

Primary Account: 

For the Period 9/1/21 to 9/30/21

Page 3 of 4

In Case of Errors or Questions About Your Electronic Funds Transfers

In Case of Errors or Questions About Non-Electronic Transactions:

Call us at 1-866-564-2262 or write us at the address on the front of this statement (non-consumers, use your J.P. Morgan Team contact information) immediately if you think your statement or receipt is incorrect or if you need more information
about a transfer listed on the statement or receipt.
For personal accounts only: We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent you the FIRST statement on which the problem or error appeared.  Be prepared to give us the following information:

�  Your name and account number
�  The dollar amount of the suspected error
�  A description of the error or transfer you are unsure of, why you believe it is an error, or why you need more information.

We will investigate your complaint and will correct any error promptly.  If we take more than 10 business days (or 20 business days for new accounts) to do this, we will credit your account for the amount you think is in error so that you will have use
of the money during the time it takes us to complete our investigation.

Contact the bank immediately if your statement is incorrect or if you need more information about any non-electronic transactions (checks or deposits) on this statement.  If any such error appears, you must notify the bank in writing no later than 30
days after the statement was made available to you.  For more complete details, see the Account Rules and Regulations or other applicable account agreement that governs your account. Deposit products and services are offered by JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A.  Member FDIC

Bank products and services are offered by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and its affiliates.  Securities are offered by J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, member  FINRA and SIPC.
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THE BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL 

2021-2022 School Year  

Tentative Calendar with 180 

Instructional Days 

(IMPORTANT DATES) 

*This calendar is subject to change. 

 
 

Date Day (s) of the Week Event 

  July 12th Monday BCS Summer Enrichment Program begins 
  August 13th  Friday BCS Summer Enrichment Program ends 
August 30th  Monday Administration returns 
September 1st Wednesday Teachers return for pre-service 
September 3rd Friday SCHOOL CLOSED- No pre-service for teachers 
September 6th  Monday Labor Day (No School, building closed) 
September 13th Monday Students first day of school (Fully In-Person) 
September 16th Thursday Yom Kippur (Fully Remote Day for Students) 

Building Closed 
October 11th Monday SCHOOL CLOSED- Indigenous Peoples’ Day 

November 2nd  Tuesday Election Day (Fully Remote Day for Students) 
Building Closed) 

November 11th Thursday SCHOOL CLOSED- Veterans Day 

November 25th-26th Thursday-Friday SCHOOL CLOSED- Thanksgiving Break 

December 24h- January 3rd Friday-Friday   SCHOOL CLOSED- Winter Recess 

January 17th Monday SCHOOL CLOSED- Martin Luther King Jr. Day 
February 1st  Tuesday SCHOOL CLOSED- Chinese Lunar New Year 

February 21st - 25th Monday- Friday SCHOOL CLOSED- Mid Winter Recess 
March 29th- 31st  Tuesday-Thursday NYS ELA Exam (Grades 3-5) 
April 1st  Friday BCS Public Lottery 
April 15th-22nd  Friday-Friday SCHOOL CLOSED- Spring Recess 
April 26th- 28th  Tuesday-Thursday NYS Math Test (Grades 3-5)  
May 2nd  Monday SCHOOL CLOSED- Eid Al Fitr 
May 30th  Monday SCHOOL CLOSED- Memorial Day 
June 7th  Tuesday BK/Queens Anniversary Day (Fully Remote Day for 

Students) Building Closed) 
June 9th  Thursday NYCDOE Clerical Day (Fully Remote Day for 

Students) Building Closed) 
June 20th Monday SCHOOL CLOSED- Juneteenth 
June 27th Monday Final Report Cards Distributed/Last Day for 

students 
   

 

This is a tentative calendar of IMPORTANT DATES for the 2021-22 school year.  This calendar is subject to change. 

A more detailed calendar with information regarding in-house assessment dates (iReady, interim assessments), report 

cards, parent-teacher conferences, spirit days, BCS Assemblies & Honor Roll, etc.) will be distributed at a later date. 

 

*This calendar reflects 180 instructional days which is broken down by month below: 

September 2021: 15 

October 2021: 20 

November 2021: 19 

December 2021:17 

January 2022: 20 

February 2022: 14 

March 2022: 23 

April 2022: 15 

May 2022: 20 

June 2022: 17 
Total Instructional Days: 180 




